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CHAIR:
Good afternoon. We’re here today for a public meeting of the New Hampshire Site Evaluation Committee.  As many of you already know, this Committee is established by RSA 162-H.  The membership of this Committee includes the Commissioners or Directors of a number of State agencies as well as specified key personnel from various State agencies.  At this point I would like to introduce the members of the Committee who are present at this meeting.  Mr. Brook Dupee, Designee for John Stephen, Commissioner of Department of Health and Human Services.  Mr. Lee Perry, Executive Director, Fish and Game Department.  Rich McLeod, Director, Division of Parks and Recreation, Department of Resources and Economic Development. MaryAnn Manoogian, Director, Governor’s Office of Energy and Planning.  Kathryn Bailey, Chief Engineer, Public Utilities Commission.  Tom Getz, Commissioner of Public Utilities Commission and Susan Geiger, Commissioner, Public Utilities Commission.  And Susan, I want to thank you for all the good work that you’ve done over the years for this Committee.

     The Committee is also served by various staffing consultants whom I’d like also to introduce at this time.  I hope I don’t miss anyone.  I want to ask them to introduce themselves that are here from DES.  


MR. WRIGHT:
Craig Wright.  I’m Administrator of the Air Permitting Groups.


CHAIR:
I also would like to introduce Michael and Vincent Iacopino, Counsel to the Committee.  The agenda for today’s public meeting includes only one major item.  That is docket #2004-01, joint Application by AES Londonderry and ABN AMRO Bank NV as agents and co-applicants for approval to transfer equity interest in AES Londonderry LLC under RSA 162-H.  It’s a joint application.  In this joint application the co-applicants seek approval from the Site Evaluation Committee to transfer the equity in AES Londonderry LLC from AES Holdings Londonderry LLC, a subsidiary of the AES Corporation, to a new entity owned by a consortium represented by ABN AMRO Bank NV as agent.  AES Londonderry LLC owns and operates a 720 megawatt combined cycle natural gas fired power plant in the ecological industrial park located in Londonderry, Rockingham County, New Hampshire.  Also a 2.9 mile electrical transmission interconnection from the power plant to the North Litchfield Substation in Litchfield, Hillsborough County.  And a 1.3 mile electrical transmission interconnection from the power plant to the Watts Brook Substation.  Also, a cooling water supply pipeline connecting the power plant to the Manchester Wastewater Treatment Plant, including a pumping station and chlorine injection system located at the Manchester Wastewater Treatment Plant.  This application also implicates a 2.7 mile lateral gas pipeline connection owned by Keyspan to a natural gas pipeline operated by the Tennessee Gas Pipeline Company.  At this meeting the Site Evaluation Committee will address the implementation of a procedural schedule in this docket.  The participation of the co-applicants, potential interveners and the public is welcome.  We’ll begin by allowing the co-applicants an opportunity to provide the Committee with the background of their application and explaining the relief they are requesting and the reasons why they are requesting such relief.  The floor will then be open to questions from the Committee followed by questions and/or comments from the public and any potential interveners.  The committee will then proceed to determine a procedural schedule for resolution of the docket.  Now I’d like to ask for a presentation by the co-applicants.


ATTORNEY SMITH:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  For the record, my name is Gregory Smith.  I am a partner in McLane, Graf, Raulerson & Middleton in Concord and I represent AES Londonderry here today.  We will each introduce ourselves and then we will proceed with a brief description of the background of the application as you just suggested.  To my right is Scott Kicker with AES Corporation.  To his right is Peter Bajc, the Plant Manager at AES-Londonderry and on my far right is my partner, Barry Needleman.  


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
Thank you, Greg.  Good afternoon Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee.  My name is Howard Moffett.  I’m an attorney with Orr and Reno here in Concord.  I think many of you know my partner, Doug Patch.  We are here this afternoon representing ABN AMRO Bank NV, which is an international bank headquartered in the Netherlands.  ABN AMRO is here in its capacity as agent for the group of financial institutions that provided the original financing for the project.  You will hear later this afternoon, briefly, from Doug and from Steve Bissonnette,  to my immediate left, who is the bank officer in charge of the project.  And from Dan Scarborough on my far left, who is with the NAES, North American Energy Services Corporation.  In between them is Greg Bray who is outside counsel to ABN AMRO Bank with the law firm of Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy in Los Angeles.  With that I think I’ll turn it back to Greg.


ATTORNEY SMITH:
Thank you Howard.  We realize this isn’t an evidentiary hearing and so today what we intend to do is to briefly lay out for you a kind of introduction and brief summary of what we have presented in an application which has been filed under oath and which we believe is in an approvable joint application for the transfer of equity interests as described in the application.  To stop for a moment and understand the context in which this application arises I think it’s helpful to review the development of a project which represents an extraordinarily good energy project which has come to a point today, I don’t think anyone could have anticipated when we appeared before this Committee in 1999.  This is a combined cycle, highly efficient, gas fired power plant.  We’re reminded that its efficiency which is of enormous benefit in the energy fleet is far higher than the pre-existing power plant fleet in New England and that when we proceeded toward de-regulation and there was a response from investors, New England enjoyed the development of approximately 8,000 new megawatts of generating power, adding substantial capacities to the New England market.  While de-regulation has not evolved as we had all thought it might, as far as it might to this point, those plants which provide benefits of producing power with emissions, pollutants, far, far below the average of the pre-existing fossil fuel fleet are under-utilized today.  The market does not call upon them.  The overcapacity and the not fully developed market has left them unable to operate at a level which would produce cash flows that adequately support the project.  This project, therefore, is in a position, it has become clear, where it does not have the cash flows to support the project and its debt service.  As a result it has reached a voluntary understanding with its lenders that it will cooperate with them for a smooth transition to convey the ultimate control and operating authority for this plant to its lenders.  There are a complicated set of private transactions you can probably imagine that are necessary to accomplish that and the intention as our application describes it is to transition the plant to a new owner.  And it would be to everyone’s benefit, customers in the New England market included, for the plant to continue to operate, be available to operate, as much as possible.  

     A smooth and relatively rapid transition through this process upon which people have been working hard, helps maintain the continuity and availability of this plant.  It provides a level of more predictability for the 24 employees who work there and it’s desirable to move through the process, a critical part of which is the decision by this Committee to approve the transfer as we’ve presented it to you.  I think with that brief introduction I will then ask Howard Moffett to proceed with our presentation today.


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
Thank you Greg.  Members of the Committee, neither party is happy to be in front of you this afternoon, I think it’s fair to say.  But we’re here because of the circumstances that Attorney Smith described and the lenders are certainly prepared to step up and take control of the plant and arrange for new ownership of the plant.  In just a moment I will ask Doug Patch if he will briefly summarize our understanding of the issues that the Committee is mandated to consider in this proceeding.  Mr. Bissonette then will talk briefly about the financial capability of the transferee and Mr. Scarborough will discuss the technical capabilities of the transferee.  I would just like to take a moment first to thank the Committee and the Committee’s counsel for organizing this initial meeting as quickly as you have.  We genuinely appreciate that.  

    Secondly, I’d like to just briefly describe the mechanics of the process that we propose to go through if the Committee approves the transfer of ownership.  I think the easy way to think of it is that you have an operating company which owns the assets of the gas plant in Londonderry.  That is AES Londonderry LLC.  AES Londonderry LLC is owned in turn by a wholly owned subsidiary of the AES Corporation.  The name of the holding company for the Londonderry assets is AES Londonderry Holdings, LLC.  The transfer mechanism that is being proposed here, a voluntary foreclosure, would involve the banks - the lenders to the project - setting up a new special purpose entity, a limited liability company, this has already been done, that would be owned by the lenders or their affiliates.  And that new special purpose entity which we refer to as Granite Ridge I would take the ownership interests, the membership interests of AES Londonderry Holdings, LLC so that the ownership of the holding company at one level above the operating company will be shifted from a subsidiary of the AES Corporation to a single purpose LLC that is affiliated with the lenders and owned in turn either by the lenders or their affiliates.  The details of the transfer process are set out more completely in the application, in section four of the application and in Exhibit D, or Appendix D.  But I don’t think it serves anybody to go into more detail about that now unless members of the Committee have questions.  I think what I would like to do is to turn it over to Mr. Patch to talk about the what we understand to be the scope of the process and some procedural issues.


ATTORNEY PATCH:
Thank you.  Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, my name is Doug Patch and I appreciate the opportunity to come here this afternoon.  Just a couple of brief comments with regard to the scope, first of all.  We had laid this out pretty much in the application that’s in front of you but I think just to briefly review it, as we see the scope of this docket, first of all, there is no statute that essentially says that this kind of transfer has to be approved by the Committee.  There’s nothing in the draft rules of the Committee but there was a condition that the Committee imposed when it originally approved the Certificate of Site and Facility.  And I think that’s essentially what brings us here today is that condition contained in that order of the Committee.  That order, of course, took this Committee through all of the necessary approvals that are required when a project is initially approved by this Committee.  In light of the fact that we’re just here to approve a transfer, however, we think it’s pretty clear under the statute that the focus of this proceeding really ought to be on the managerial, technical and financial capabilities of the applicant and so that’s how we have tailored the application that’s been presented to you and that’s really what we believe the Committee needs to do is to take a look at those particular qualifications.  Our application addresses those in great detail and Steve Bissonette and Dan Scarborough will provide you some more information.  I think at least a brief overview of those.       In addition to that, as Mr. Moffett has already mentioned, we very much appreciate the fact that this Committee has gotten together in the early stages of the summer to get as many members of the Committee as you could together today.  We do believe, however, that there are some very good reasons as to why this Committee should really expedite this as much as possible.  Number one, I think this is the kind of unique process, I’m not sure that there are any other states where there have been similar transfers and I think there have been a number of them around the country that actually required some  formal approval process.  So I think as a state, New Hampshire is probably going further than you would find just about any other state has gone.  And we appreciate the fact that we have to go through this, but the fact that we presented you with this thorough application and we’re happy to answer questions about it, we think is important.  

     Also as you look around, I think the only interested party here today that I know of is the Town of Londonderry.  This has been noticed, there was a formal publication that was required which we addressed and we submitted a letter to the Chairman indicating that we had accomplished that.  In addition to that there was actual notice provided to the service list which was based on the last docket of this Committee addressing the same plant and then finally, there have been press reports about the process.  So I think if there was anybody who was really interested in this transfer who wanted to come and tell you what they thought you ought or ought not to do I think they would be here today.  So from our perspective we don’t necessarily think that there needs to be further notice and that further some sort of deadline for the submission of intervention requests.  But obviously that’s up to the Committee to make that determination.  

     In terms of reasons as to why we believe that it’s important to expedite this, I think that Mr. Smith made reference to this earlier today but from the perspective of the current employees certainly the shorter period of time that there is before the transfer is accomplished the better.  The uncertainty doesn’t really work to anyone’s benefit.  From the transferee’s perspective they would very much like to hire as many of those employees as possible and so the longer period of uncertainty that you have, the more possibility that there is that you won’t be able to retain those employees.  Because of the uncertainty they may go and look for jobs elsewhere.  So that we think is one very strong reason as to why expedited approval would make sense.  In addition to that, given the sort of limbo that we’re in, there’s an inability on the lender’s part to commit additional capital until the transfer is complete and I think you can understand that.  In addition, there are a number of costs that are associated with this period of time.  The cost of maintaining the professionals during the interim.  In essence there’s I guess what we would refer to as sort of a shadow management group that has to be in place.  So there is a significant financial expense to  having this interim period of time.  The shorter that it can be the better.  Then finally, I guess I would like to mention that it’s difficult oftentimes to maintain everyday business relationships when you have that uncertainty.  So we think there are really a number of good reasons as to why we would urge you to be as expeditious as possible to complete the process that you need to go through in order to address this.  

     Again, we think our application is really very thorough and has done a good job of laying out all the reasons why we qualify for the financial managerial and technical capabilities to be able to run the facility.  So with that I think I’m going to turn it over to Steve Bissonette.


MR. BISSONETTE:
Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee.  My name is Steve Bissonette and I work for ABN AMRO Bank NV.  The AMRO I think stands for Amsterdam-Rotterdam.  It’s a Dutch bank with significant operations in the United States.  We have significant experience in this industry, in the electric power business and doing financing such as this.  I personally, not all with ABN AMRO have 15 plus years of experience as a banker to the electric power business.  We are agents for a number of -- essentially the lead bank for a number of financings such as the AES Londonderry financing.  In this case our co-lenders to the project are all largely very experienced in the business as well.  Recently we have unfortunately been through a similar foreclosure.  Not a public proceeding like this, but the process of taking control and ownership of a power plant in Texas.  A similar power plant where we were required -- essentially the owner was not able to continue being able to be an owner and supporting the construction process.  We as agent and the lenders, many of whom are actually part of this bank group as well, funded the completion of construction in that case, transitioned the project to operations, conducted an orderly sale process with the use of an investment bank as we would probably intend here and sold the plant in March.  The first such sale that we know of in the market, although there will be many following that.  This is not a market problem that’s confined to New Hampshire unfortunately.

     We, in that process, were required to put up money to support the working capital of that power plant.  Upon transfer the lenders to this facility will continue as lenders and will also put up additional working capital, up to 40 million dollars to support this plant which is not now available.  This is in addition to the almost 300 million dollars that we have invested in this plant right now.  So the lenders and ABN AMRO in general have a significant investment which we seek to preserve.  Our primary goal here is to preserve the value of the collateral.  It’s our determination at this point that doing what we’re doing here, which is to transfer ownership and to try to keep the plant going as it is, is the best way for us to preserve that collateral and to comply with everything else that needs to be complied with going forward.  In this vein, we’ve hired the best consultants that we know how to hire.  We’ve hired people that we’ve worked with before who have reputations in the industry.  One of whom is North American Energy Services who will be the on-site operator and manager of the plant.  We’ve known them by reputation for many years and by personal experience in working with them on the deal that I spoke with in Texas just recently where they performed a similar role for us successfully until the time we were able to transfer ownership of that plant.  So I’d like to introduce Dan Scarborough who is their Director of Power Plant Operations and Technical Services.  


MR. SCARBOROUGH:
Thank you Steve.  Good afternoon.  As Steve mentioned, I’m Dan Scarborough, I’m the vice president of Power Plant Operations and Technical Services for North America Services.  We are independent, third party operators of power plants.  That’s what we do.  Our entire business line.  We’ve been operating power plants as specialists for 17 years.  We currently have 32 projects we’re operating at this time and we also have experience in going through the kind of turnover process, transition process, of 30 projects in this kind of situation.  Our objective in transitioning the Londonderry projection to North American Operations under ABN AMRO as the lead is to have a seamless transfer of operations.  To do this we build upon our experience, our proven procedures, policies and processes.  We intend to offer employment to all AES Londonderry personnel.  Operations/maintenance personnel.  If any chose not to accept that employment we have procedures to identify, recruit and fill open positions.  We would expect, based upon again our prior experience, the vast majority to accept that employment.  

     Again, the objective: seamless transfer and responsibilities including coordination with outside agencies -- all outside agencies and organizations, continue to comply with all the requirements and finally we intend to and we have strong confidence we can continue to achieve good technical and operational performance.  Based on experience, again of our plants, my personal observation, visits to the plants and also on the information received, we’re quite confident that this approach will be successful.  Thank you.


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
And with that, Mr. Chairman, I think we’ll entertain questions from the Committee.


CHAIR:
Okay.  Before I get to that I’d like to introduce the latest member of the Committee to arrive, Phillip Bryce who is the Director of the Division of Forests and Lands, Department of Resources and Economic Development.


MR. BRYCE:
I’m late.


CHAIR:
I’d like to call on questions from the Committee.  Ms. Geiger?


MS. GEIGER:
Thank you Mr. Chairman.  I know that this is not a hearing on the merits but I’m curious about the interim operation of the facility if we were to approve the transfer and before the facility would be sold to a third party.  More specifically, I would like to ask Mr. Scarborough whether his idea of operating the facility includes at all making additional capital improvements to bring online an oil tank that this Committee granted a waiver for last -- I think it was about a year ago.  In other words, my concern stems from the fact that when this facility was originally certificated, we granted authority for a fuel storage tank on-site to be built so that the plant in cases of extreme volatility in the gas market could utilize fuel oil.  This past winter we experienced difficulty in that regard and I think had that facility been in place the plant could have perhaps stayed online and the market in New England would not have gone in the high direction that it did.  So my question to you is, from an operational standpoint, are you merely going to be operating the facility as it currently exists and is configured or do you have any plans to expand the facility to bring an additional fuel source online given what happened last winter?


MR. SCARBOROUGH:
Could I defer that to Steve Bissonette because if there are capital improvements, we would make recommendations and the owner or lender has to approve those capital improvements.


MS. GEIGER:
Sure.  And I guess the question really is is any of that 40 million dollars that you spoke about earmarked for a capital improvement of the type I’ve been talking about?


MR. BISSONETTE:
It is not right now.  Our -- and I am sensitive and aware that that’s an issue in New England in terms of liability.  Our goal here is to preserve the plant in the best way we can and keep it going until we can sell it.  Likely -- we understand that the person or company that we sell it to is likely going to have to go through a similar proceeding and is going to have to be qualified in their own right.  We are bankers and while we won’t own this directly, we will own it indirectly.  It is not our goal to be long term owners, even indirectly, of power plants and I think the best that we can hope to do is to keep jobs and preserve value and sell it to somebody good who can make a longer term economic decision with regard to that.  

     Now to the extent that the plant runs into issues that are necessary to maintain the safety or reliability of the plant, I think those are the types of things that we’d be focusing more on rather than sort of elective capital improvements during the period which we hope is a short period.  We hope it’s a few months.  Experience would tell us that it’s possible to do it within a few months but sometimes it’s not.  We certainly, at least I can speak for ABN AMRO, we are not hoping to be the owners a year from now or 12 months from now.  But we are hoping to turn over a fully functional facility to someone who is qualified to do that.  I’m punting a little but I think it’s a decision for our new owners to make and I’m not sure that in the context of trying to make sure that we have enough money in this project which doesn’t always pay its own expenses right now, to put more money as a capital expenditure in would be a difficult thing for us to do unless it were necessary.


MS. GEIGER:
One further question.  I think this question is for Mr. Scarborough.  You indicated that NEAS has experience with 32 projects similar to the one that’s before us today.  Are any of those projects in New England?


MR. SCARBOROUGH:
We are currently in the process -- we operated a plant in Lowell, Mass. previously.  We’re currently in the process of supporting another consortium of banks taking over three facilities in the Boston area: two in Everett and one in Weymouth, and we’re also taking over facilities in the very near future near Sturbridge.


MS. GEIGER:
And these are all electric generating facilities?


MR. SCARBOROUGH:
Yes, they are.  They are all GE technology, similar technology to the Londonderry facility.


MS. GEIGER:
Thank you very much.


CHAIR:
Mr. Getz?


MR. GETZ:
I think this is a question primarily for Mr. Moffett or Mr. Patch.  The request for expedited treatment could you just add some more specificity to what you were thinking and I’m not talking about each of the details but in terms of a hearing date and an order date that would constitute expedited treatment in your mind?


MR. MOFFETT:
Yes, Mr. Getz.  We would simply say that understanding that the Committee has to handle those questions of fairness and public notice and the schedules of Committee, members which we understand are going to be difficult during the summertime, anything that can be done to speed up the process so that we might be able to get a final decision from the Committee before the end of the summer would be greatly appreciated.  You’ll have to decide whether that’s possible, but for all the reasons that Mr. Patch indicated  we would be prepared to do anything asked of us in order to help the Committee make a decision as quickly as possible.


MR. BISSONETTE:
If I may, sir.  This is the busiest time.  Beginning the busiest time for the power plant.  It’s a practical concern of ours that we, not only as Mr. Patch and Mr. Smith mentioned before, keeping the employees around in a period of limbo during the busiest time of the year is a concern of ours.  So the faster that we can do this, the better it will be for the power plant.  And we understand that there are limitations but that is, in our opinion, essentially a true statement, is that the more stability that we can provide to the power plant, the more outward stability to third party contractors, to the employees, to the market, the better off the power plant is going to be.  So the sooner it can happen the better.  The less money we’ll waste duplicating effort in management and technical expertise.


MR. GETZ:
Another question that I think probably for Mr. Bissonette, maybe Mr. Bray.  In the general context of this proposal.  You talk about this consensual foreclosure, are there other creditors out there who can offset that?  Are there other transactions before?  Is there a possibility of an involuntary Chapter 11?  Are there things that we need to consider in that context, in the threshold issue of looking at this and in the context of addressing procedural issues around timing?


ATTORNEY BRAY:
I’m Greg Bray.  I’ll try to answer that.  I think the short answer is no, probably not.  As we understand it the plant is relatively current in respect to its obligations to creditors.  One of the reasons why we’re asking for expedited approval is that the plant does not generate enough cash to pay its obligations and on a regular basis; it needs additional working capital loans to fulfill those obligations.  The lenders, for various reasons, cannot make those loans until the transfer is complete.  So there is a risk if the process is prolonged that the plant would run short on cash and the situation that you described where creditors don’t get paid and at least there is the potential for an involuntary bankruptcy occurs, but for the summer we don’t think that that would happen.  We certainly are not of a mind to commence an involuntary proceeding at this time.  That is always an option the lenders have but that is not our preferred course of action.  We have structured a transfer with AES that we believe is more sensible and more practical and better for everyone.  So as things stand now I don’t think we have to worry in the short term about a bankruptcy or a significant litigation with vendors about unpaid bills.  As I understand it, there are the usual types of dispute about services that were rendered or not adequately rendered, ordinary course types of issues, but I’m not aware of anything out of the ordinary course and the lenders are by far and away the  largest group of creditors of the project itself.


CHAIR:
Ms. Manoogian?


MS. MANOOGIAN:
Thank you.  Like Commissioner Geiger, I know this isn’t a hearing on the merits but I was wondering if you could -- and I believe this might be a question for Mr. Scarborough.  If you could provide me with any updated information in regards to -- you had identified some potential compliance -- environmental compliance issues when you filed this application back in May and I was wondering if there were any updates to Attachment C specifically identified in this application.  If you want to reference Attachment C that’s fine.  


ATTORNEY SMITH:
I think, yes, those issues are ongoing issues in which we are working very closely with the respective agencies, primarily the Resources Agency I think.  We did, in Attachment C describe some air permitting issues and also included a self disclosure report with respect to carbon monoxide.  Since we filed this we have executed an Administrative Order by consent with the Air Resources Agency which deals with that issue and that order provides that we will file with ARD the startup proposal which is contemplated in the original certificate to be filed within one year of beginning commercial operations and that I think was actually this past April.  But the compliance order provides that that will be filed with ARD by July 15th and it will be filed by July 15th as I understand it.  Also it allows us to –- it took into account the malfunctions which are described in the report that you’ve seen and provides for a compliance plan for the plant to continue to operate through the rest of this calendar year.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Mr. Smith, could you make --


ATTORNEY SMITH:
Oh, one other issue that’s mentioned there, I can update, and that’s the drift test which was scheduled in early June.  It was performed in early June and I’m told that it takes about three weeks to get the results back and we’re still awaiting those results.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Mr. Smith, could you make arrangements to have that Administrative Order and the consent agreement that you just discussed made available to the Committee through the Committee Secretary Helen Vezina?


ATTORNEY SMITH:
I have a copy with me if anyone would like to copy it.  I will do that.


CHAIR:
Any further questions of the Committee?  Ms. Manoogian?


MS. MANOOGIAN:
I have another question.  I also just wanted to affirm, because I also noted in filing in the application is the recognition of commitments with the Town, independent of the commitments reported with EFSEC but the commitments with the Town of Londonderry and the Town of Litchfield and I’m assuming that those commitments will still be honored if this application and transfer is approved?


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
Yes.


MS. MANOOGIAN:
Thank you.


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
We will be stepping into the shoes of the current owner and we assume that the same conditions will apply.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I have a few questions, Mr. Chair.  To Mr. Patch and Mr. Moffett, I’m sure that your clients have been made aware of the nature of the conditions, because they are fairly extensive, that this Committee has attached to the Certificate.  Has there been internal review of those conditions by your clients to ensure that they can, in fact, comply with the various conditions?


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
I think that it’s fair to say that both the bank, ABN AMRO and North American Energy Services have reviewed those conditions, understand them, at least in terms of what they say.  Some of them obviously are more detailed than others.  It’s our understanding that for the most part those conditions -- especially those conditions that had to do with the original construction  of the plant -- have been met.  As the application makes clear, there are a couple of ongoing compliance issues and I think that our clients will represent that they will do their best not only to understand those conditions but to comply with them.  So from that standpoint we are, in general, familiar with those conditions and if there are questions about any specific ones we’d be glad to try to answer your questions.  But, as a general rule, that’s what I’d say.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Have they been made available to NEAS as well?


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
Yes.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I guess my next question is to Mr. Scarborough.  I understand that these lenders have chosen your company to operate the plant if this all goes through.  Who else is out there in the industry that does what you do other than NEAS?  Are there other entities that do that?


MR. SCARBOROUGH:
There are other entities.  General Electric has an operating branch.  Just to give you examples of -- another manufacturer Wood Group has an operating branch.  There are a number of companies, most of which are affiliated with -- or many of which are affiliated with manufacturers of some sort of equipment.  We are, as I mentioned earlier, we are independent in that we do not have any affiliation with manufacturers of equipment.  Therefore we look upon ourselves as third party independent operators.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Are there any other third party independent operators?


MR. SCARBOROUGH:
There are a number of small companies.  A company called Pick, Prime South, a number such as this.  None of them operate near the number of plants that we operate.  


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
My next question I guess is one that Mr. Moffett, you sort of deferred -- is about the actual structure of the transaction that’s going to occur.  If I understand correctly, AES Londonderry Holdings, LLC. owns the equity in AES, is the sole owner of AES Londonderry LLC.  Is that correct?


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
That’s correct.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Are there any other intermediate companies between the AES Corporation and AES Londonderry Holdings, LLC?


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
No.  I don’t believe so but I’m looking at Mr. Smith and Mr. Kicker to confirm that.


MR. KICKER:
Yeah, I can confirm that there aren’t.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I guess my question was AES Londonderry Holdings LLC., were they part of the original application in this case or did they come along afterwards?


ATTORNEY SMITH:
I would have to check the record but I don’t think that they were part of the application.  I think the application was made by AES Londonderry.  That was the applicant.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
So at the time that we granted this Certificate then did AES Londonderry Holdings hold the equity in AES Londonderry LLC?


ATTORNEY SMITH:
I’m told that it did.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Because this application is the first time that I’ve seen that entity named and I’m just a little surprised.  With respect to the company that’s going to be the transferee of the Certificate, this is this Granite Ridge I Special Purpose Entity LLC.  Is there going to be any intermediate owner of that company other than the consortium of the bank and whatever?


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
No, Mr. Iacopino.  The sole owner of AES Londonderry LLC after the consensual transfer has taken place will be the new Special Purpose Entity, a limited liability company which we refer to in the application as Granite Ridge I.  That will be the sole owner of the operating company of AES Londonderry LLC.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I guess but my question is the level above that.  Is there going to be any other intermediary special purpose entities, corporations, or other entities between the lenders and Granite Ridge I?


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
I’m going to defer to Mr. Bray.


ATTORNEY BRAY:
The answer is yes.  The lenders as lending institutions do not want to own assets because that’s not what they do.  They lend money.  So it is our expectation that most, if not all, of these institutions will form their own entity and that entity will be the interest holder in the Granite Ridge I entity.  So I think for purposes of your question, yes, there will be intermediate entities above Granite Ridge I that will own the equity of Granite Ridge I.  It will not be the lenders themselves.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
So each bank in the consortium might have their own LLC or special purpose entity which owns its share of the equity in Granite Ridge I.  Is that correct?


ATTORNEY BRAY:
Yes.  That’s correct.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Is Granite Ridge I SPELLC - is that going to be a New Hampshire special purpose entity?  Or is it --


ATTORNEY BRAY:
Delaware.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Delaware.  Do any of the members of the presentation here have any guidance for the Committee as to how we are to sort of get to the people who are actually responsible for the plant, in terms of ownership of it, with all of these various companies that plan on being formed?


ATTORNEY BRAY:
I think the answer is that the NEAS will be the on-site operator.  There will be other advisors who will be responsible for the actual operation and NEAS will have someone on-site.  Hopefully, though there are no commitments, the current Project Manager for AES will remain as the Project Manager now that Mr. Scarborough has said there will be a new one, but I think you can rest assured that day to day responsibility and if you want to pick up the phone and call someone, there will be a name.  This person will be the Project Manager and we’ll always have access to them.


UNKNOWN SPEAKER:
Plant Manager.


ATTORNEY BRAY:
Plant Manager, I’m sorry.  You will always have access if you needed to, to Mr. Scarborough or anyone else to answer any questions.  I don’t think you will have a problem getting access or answers to questions in terms of the operation of the plant. 


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Let me ask it this way.  Let’s say, and obviously this Committee doesn’t do that, but let’s say that the Air Resources Division decides that there’s a fine due, or there’s money due and for some reason it’s not forthcoming.  I’m sure NEAS is not going to pay the fines for the owners of the plant.  They’re just operating the plant.  How are those determinations going to be made and how can the Committee have any comfort level that in fact we’re not going to be bounced around from company to company?


ATTORNEY BRAY:
Granite Ridge I will have, for lack of a better term, a managing entity or managing person.  Initially that will be probably Mr. Bissonette at ABM AMRO.  So I think as a practical matter, let’s just take your example.  What would happen is let’s say there’s a fine for - I’ll pick an easy number - a $100 that obviously the on-site person would be aware of it, NEAS would be aware of it and it will be discussed with the Manager, Mr. Bissonette or whoever that is.  If it’s an obligation that needs to be paid, it will be paid either from cash flow or from the working capital loans.  But I think that scenario would be no different with the lenders than it is in the current situation for example with AES.  It will come from cash flow.  It will be essentially day to day operational obligation of the plant.  It would be paid in the manner that any other corporate entity - for lack of a better term - would pay those obligations.  I don’t think that there will be -- if your concern is that if a decision has to be made on day to day operations, that you’re going to need to hear unanimous consent from 13 lenders.  The answer is no, you will not.  That the managing agent of Granite Ridge and NEAS and the other advisors will be cloaked as the authority to operate the plant and to make the necessary operational decisions.  If there is a substantial decision that must be made, certainly the lenders may have to be consulted in accordance with the loan documents or the equity documents.  But as to day to day matters and general operation, that’s not the case.  Nor would they want to be involved in that.  Obviously again, they’re lenders.  They’re in the business of lending money not operating power plants and that’s why we emphasize that we’ve gone out and hired who we believe to be the finest professionals to actually operate the plant.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
My next question is a little more basic, Mr. Chairman, if I can.  I guess I’ll address it to AES.  Some people on the Committee are more versed in the market than others and certainly the public is here as well.  I guess my question is can you give us a little more background into the reasons why the new efficient plant hasn’t produced and why it’s not producing a profit or essentially you can’t get the cash flow to cover your expenses?


MR. KICKER:
Yeah, I’ll try to address that question.  It’s fairly complicated but just to kind of summarize: when we initially started developing the project in the late 90's the market was much different.  The pricing, that was in the market that these plants was expected to generate was much different than it is today.  What has happened since this project came on line was indicated earlier is about 8,000 megawatts of power has been built in New England.  When people like AES invested in these projects we assumed that some of the older plants would shut down and would reduce that excess capacity so that these would be very competitive in the market.  What we have now is a situation where gas prices have risen and these projects aren’t as competitive against some of the coal projects that have continued to run beyond what we thought at the time we made the investment would be their useful life.  We expect that at some time in the future those conditions will change and there will be market equilibrium at some point.  But unfortunately, at this time, that coupled with a delay in the construction schedule that carried beyond a year, more than we expected, as well as some of the technical issues that we highlighted in the report or application such as the steam turbine failure have led to some of the problems that we have.  So we ended up in our situation where we as the equity sponsor have contributed 240 million dollars and there is no chance for us to recover that investment through the life of this project.  At the same time we have been unable in the near term to service the debt.  That’s when we started working with the banks at the beginning of this year as to what we would do now because we have been unable to pay interest or principal on the loans for the money we borrowed for this project.  That’s kind of where we are today.  We know the market is changing.  We know they’re out there making adjustments to the market; how it works.  There was a lot of discussion on how the markets would be liberalized going forward but the short answer is it’s much different today than what we expected it to be when we made our initial investment on the project.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
With respect to ABN AMRO’s side of the coin, I know you mentioned that the plant in Texas - I take it that’s (inaudible) Valley Plant, I think Cal-Pine purchased that plant from you if I read the press releases correctly.  If there are -- how many different projects like this, these voluntary foreclosures or how many different plants are you in the process of essentially trying to rescue?


MR. BISSONETTE:
As agent now, I think there is one.  Please don’t hold me to that.  I’m trying to --


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
One other?


MR. BISSONETTE:
No.  This plant.  We are involved and have significant investment in several other plants that are going through this process.  Some of them are portfolios of plants.  For example, four plants or five plants.  Fortunately we are not involved in some of those that are going through that process.  But just in New England here there are at least two different companies with portfolios of projects that are in the process of turning those over to their lenders in one form or another.  There are some in California.  Essentially it’s all across the country.  The power plants like this  have failed to be able to even in many cases pay their ongoing expenses, never mind paying interest or principal on their debt.  Many are being shut down.  New England happens to be not quite as bad a market as some of the other markets where some of these plants just have no hope - seemingly for many years - to even potentially operate again and make any sort of margin at all.  So what we have here is a situation, it’s not a great situation, but it’s a situation that both AES has essentially written this off and we feel that the best way to preserve the value in our plant, and we feel that the plant’s value is best preserved as an operating plant at least at this point that’s what all of our research and all of our efforts to date have shown us, is that the course that we’re taking now is the best course for us and for the power plant.  Which are effectively the same thing.  


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I guess the question I’m getting to is how long before -- if this transfer is granted, how long is it going to take you to find a company to actually purchase?  Your best estimate.  I know I can’t actually hold you to it.


MR. BISSONETTE:
It’s a very difficult question because if I say something it’s invariably going to be wrong.  When we sold Russell’s (ph) Valley I think it took less than a year but not very much less.  Let me tell you how we would expect to do it.  We would expect to hire an investment bank to assist us in the process.  They would create a package that we would send out hopefully fairly soon after the transfer.  It won’t take them that long hopefully, a few weeks to put that together.  It could go from 20 to 80 different parties who would then be sort of narrowed down to perhaps a dozen parties.  Who would then be narrowed down to hopefully one or two or three parties and then in that process, I can’t imagine would take anywhere less than three to four months.  Then the due diligence process and the actual transfer.  So it seems to me that you know, if we do very well at the process and are very lucky, maybe four to six months.  And if we are not, who knows.  So we can’t approach this as lenders as being necessarily short term owners even though that’s clearly what we want to be.  We need to establish ourselves as able to maintain the facility and have it do the things it needs to do to comply in order to maintain its value for the foreseeable future.  In our contract, for example, with Mr. Scarborough, is a five year contract.  Which we can terminate but at a shorter period of time but it is for five years and being that we don’t want them going away from us.  There are other qualified -- I get calls by many, many firms who  are interested and probably would be qualified.  From my personal experience, my institution’s experience, North American Energy Services did a great job for us on our last deal.  I first worked with them when they were operating a plant in 1990 I think and so they were chosen for a reason because we thought they were best for us and for the power plant in this situation but there are others.  We just don’t want them going away so we’ve got a longer term contract in case we have to use it.  We don’t want to use it.  We want to transfer to somebody who wants to be a power plant owner for the long term.  But in the meantime if we -- the health of the power plant is how we get paid back because there’s nobody else to pay us back.  Those assets are how we are going to get our money back and we won’t get all of it back.  We’re going to lose some money most likely.  That’s -- but there’s nobody else and so we have to take good care of the asset and so we have hired and will continue to hire the best people we know how to do that job on our behalf or on the behalf of our affiliates who are actually going to be the owners.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
This is for the attorneys.  Do you anticipate any type of FERC or FTC filing stemming from this transaction?


ATTORNEY BRAY:
Yes.  That’s almost complete, if not complete so we think that the FERC filing -- I don’t want to short change it, we don’t expect there will be a delay there.  Those are usually fairly commonly granted but yes, that application if it hasn’t been filed yet, will literally be filed any day now.  That should not be any significant delay of the process in terms of your approval process in transfer of ownership.  


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Other than FERC are there any other Federal agencies that you anticipate having to file with for approvals to undertake your sale?


ATTORNEY BRAY:
I believe there’s an FCC license.  Two of them that we need to have transferred.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Federal Communications Commission?


ATTORNEY BRAY:
Yes.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
What about the SEC?


ATTORNEY BRAY:
We do not have any filings we have to make with the SEC.


MR. GETZ:
Is the FERC filing you’re talking about the exempt wholesale generator filing?  What kind of FERC filing are you --


MR. BISSONETTE:
It’s a market power filing.  It’s essentially any time -- I’m not an attorney so I’m extemporizing but anytime that the ownership of a power plant changes such that there could be impact on FERC related issues such as wholesale marketing of power and that sort of thing, it requires under the Federal Power Act I believe, a FERC approval.  That approval has generally in our experience been forthcoming, in sort of a 30 to 45 days kind of time frame.  But -- and it’s more an issue of FERC looking at -- to see if the new owners are going to have market power over the area that they own the assets in.  Clearly in this case, from our standpoint, I mean I don’t see how they could possibly determine that we have market power in terms of -- 


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I guess do you -- you obviously have some ownership in other power plants though.


MR. BISSONETTE:
We, right now I do not believe that we have ownership -- we did have ownership in Texas, however, that doesn’t count.  Texas is (inaudible)  which is not part of FERC’s jurisdiction according to Texas at least.  We are intending on or we expect soon to have ownership in other power plants as well.  I don’t believe that we own any others right now.


ATTORNEY BRAY:
Just to be clear, the other owners in the group have to make the disclosure too. 


MR. BISSONETTE:
That’s right.  I’m sorry.  I’m speaking for ABN AMRO.  I should be speaking for all of them.  I’m sure that -- or I’m relatively sure that there are some that are now owners of power plants.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
That’s the primary concern of the FERC filing is what other interests you may have in the industry.


ATTORNEY BRAY:
Those have all been disclosed.  Anything is possible of course but we don’t think that’s going to be a delay.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I don’t have any further questions.


CHAIR:
Mr. Vincent Iacopino?


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
During the previous hearings a lot was presented as to the experience in managerial capacity of AES.  I mean, they were presented as world wide building plants all over the world, managing plants all over the world.  When I read the application here, it’s like deja vu.  The same comments being made just different people and I’m just wondering if during the evidentiary hearing you’ll be in a position to show us why AES, this very sophisticated, experienced company couldn’t do it and why the new owners or transferees or operators will be able to salvage this plant.


ATTORNEY SMITH:
Mr. Iacopino, this is Greg Smith, for the record.  I think I know to what part of the original record you’re referring and I don’t think that it has any -- well, I understand your question, I don’t think it has any direct application to the circumstances we have described in this document.  This is the principal reason why.  AES has people who are highly skilled at running power plants.  I don’t think that’s actually in question.  What we have described there is a period of gaining experience with new technology.  At the time - if I speak correctly - at the time we sought approval for this machine, you’ll recall there were two applications going through the EFSEC process.  I believe the one in Newington was a 501F machine and this is a 501G machine.  This was the first or second G machine in the world I think at that time.  Or something approximating that newness.  So the technology for this highly efficient, sophisticated and very beneficial plant because of its high efficiency and its low emissions was quite new.  It was desirable to utilize it.  The period of shakedown, I am told, is customarily a time when this fairly complicated machinery has to be tuned and adjusted and you have to make sure that you can run it on a steady commercial basis.  There was a problem that Mr. Kicker referred to with a failure of part of the equipment that was a manufacturer warrantee correction and caused interruption of the operation of the plant.  There have been adjustments in how to run the plant.  All of that is carefully documented.  It’s also been handled in close coordination with State agency officials but I don’t think that that information, which I understand you’ve asked us to address perhaps a little more fully at a subsequent hearing, suggests that there was an inability of the people who were running the plant to run a power plant well or that they were inattentive to it.  It really had much more to do with a shakedown period that extended from April 2003 to April 2004 and --


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
I don’t want to get into the specifics of it but I’m not directing it at the operation of the plant as much as I am to the managerial decisions that were made regarding those issues.  I’m sure that people who were building it were doing what they were supposed to do in trying the machinery out the way it was supposed to be tried out, but somebody -- I mean, here is a national company - a world wide company - who we were led to believe was tops in the field at that time, making these decisions and apparently they were not all the correct decisions.  All I want to be sure of is that what’s presented is that the new people who will be making those decisions, not the operators, but making those decisions as to whether this plant will or will not operate, are capable of doing it.  Do they have as much experience as AES?  Do they have more?  Do they have less? That’s the kind of issue I was directing myself at.


CHAIR:
Mr. Getz?


MR. GETZ:
I have another timing related question and if I look at the last sentence on page 2 of the petition it says that “Transfer of the equity interest in AES Granite Ridge I is subject to satisfactory completion of the lender’s due diligence, final approval from the lenders and the approval of the SEC.”   And I was wondering what the status of the due diligence and the final approval are and if there’s any particular order that those are going to go in?


ATTORNEY BRAY:
The due diligence is substantially completed.  It’s not 100 percent complete.  At this time we’re not aware of any diligence issues that would cause us to not want to proceed.  The lenders, as a group, have not yet sought final approvals for the transfers.  They are certainly all aware of the process.  We have no indications at this time that there will be an issue or a problem with respect to that.  But as is always the case, there will be one final discussion amongst the lenders.  The lenders will run it up the various managerial chains for final approvals.  But I think we can say at this time that we do not expect that those issues would surface in such a way as to stop the transfer if this Committee approves it.


MR. BISSONETTE:
We’re spending a lot of money under the assumption that we’re going to get there ourselves and that’s -- I should probably just leave it --


CHAIR:
At this time I would like to open it up for questions or comments from the public or potential interveners.  If you could address the Committee by stating your name and your affiliation please?


ATTORNEY UPTON:
My name is Robert Upton of Upton and Hatfield.  I represent the Town of Londonderry.  If my memory serves me right this plant represents about 11 percent of the tax base in Londonderry.  It’s our largest single taxpayer.  As with all large taxpayers we have our issues but those are being addressed.  I think it’s also fair to say that the same conditions that have caused this application have caused an impact to the value of the plant which affects the value for tax purposes.  The Town of Londonderry is not opposed to this application and would not intervene in any way to try to stop it or be opposed to it in any way.  In fact, I think it’s also fair to say that it’s our belief, the Town’s belief, that continued operation and resolution of any issues around ownership would be beneficial to the Town.  We’re also not opposed to the request that we heard for expedited procedure and consideration by this Committee.  I can’t see anything - any purpose or benefit in not expediting the process.  I think probably there’s a great and good reason for expediting.  I’d be happy to answer any questions you might have of me.


CHAIR:
Thank you Mr. Upton.  Are there questions from the Committee for Mr. Upton?  


ATTORNEY CRONIN:
Mr. Chairman, members of the Board, my name is John Cronin.  I’m an attorney from Manchester and I represent Sustainable Design and Development.  That’s a small LLC with New Hampshire principals.  They actually sold the land to AES to develop the power plant and they own adjacent property to the power plant.  During the construction there were some problems with respect to not filling of certain lands, lands that are owned by our client.  Also some erosion issues.  There’s an agreement entered into between AES and Sustainable and unfortunately AES hasn’t satisfied the conditions of that agreement.  Our clients being disenchanted with no response filed suit in Superior Court this spring, in May.  The court there granted an ex partie attachment in the amount of approximately $266,000.  The way that I hear it today is that this is going to be a voluntary type foreclosure and the concerns of our client of course are that that lien will be extinguished leaving an AES with no assets or no ability to satisfy a judgment if it’s entered by the court.  We would ask that any approval of this be conditioned on the establishment of some type of escrow or some type of ability for Sustainable being a relatively small company and this being a major claim for them to be satisfied.  

     During the questions that were raised by certain Board members I have a couple of questions that came to mind and perhaps they could be answered today and one of those is one whether AES Londonderry or any of its affiliates, principals or other interested parties would retain an interest in the successor company, the Granite Ridge Company.  And I guess the second question is, if this is approved and our case does proceed through the courts and we do receive a judgment who is it that the applicants propose will be available with the ability to pay?  Thank you very much.


CHAIR:
Thank you.  Are there any questions from the Committee?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Mr. Cronin, just so you’re aware, it’s the intent of the Committee today to issue procedural schedule.  There will be a deadline for petitions to intervene.  If your clients wish to intervene in the proceeding they can if they state clear grounds under RSA 541 which would permit them intervention status. 


ATTORNEY CRONIN:
I appreciate that comment.  Whether we intervene or not I think at this point --


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I guess I do have one question for you.  Who is the defendant in the lawsuit in Superior Court?  Is it AES Londonderry LLC?


ATTORNEY CRONIN:
That’s correct.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
If I understand correctly on this petition that entity will still exist, it will just be different managing partners of it.


ATTORNEY CRONIN:
And the questions would be under the voluntary foreclosure, what assets will remain and if it will be sufficient assets I think that solves our problem and if anyone can share any comments with respect to that we’d appreciate it.


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
Mr. Iacopino, it’s the equity interests in the operating company that will be transferred, not the assets.  So all assets that are currently owned by AES Londonderry LLC, the operating company, will continue to be in AES Londonderry LLC.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
So the bottom line from Mr. Cronin’s point of view is that should he obtain a judgment he will still have all the remedies available against the power plant.


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
Whatever rights they have now they will have after the transfer.


CHAIR:
Is there anyone that would like to speak at this time?  Hearing none, I’d like to adjourn this meeting.  Thank you for coming.  This portion of the meeting will now go into new business.

(inaudible discussion) 

     At this time, I think we’ve got our act together here.  We’re going to ask that we clear the room.  Thank you.  


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Just so the record is clear, we’re clearing the room for a non-meeting so that the Committee can discuss the schedule with counsel and then we’ll come out and deliberate and provide you with a procedural schedule.

(Off the record briefly)

NON-MEETING PORTION:

ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Now that we’re in a non-meeting, what I was going to suggest is that we set up a deadline for anybody who wishes to intervene, to file a petition, to require the applicants to notice it up and then I don’t expect any intervention from what we’ve seen so far so I think that if we do that we’ve covered ourselves to allow those parties who may be interested a period of time in which to demonstrate their interest, file a motion, and if there are in fact interveners I can obviously have some informal discussions with them as to time frames and the Committee can issue a further order then.  I would anticipate that if there are no interveners we’d schedule a further hearing at which to simply deliberate on the application and allow the co-applicants to submit anything further that they wish to submit.  I don’t know if anybody has -- Tom, I know you had some ideas about how to proceed.  


MR. GETZ:
Yeah, well I guess I’m trying to -- having seen what kind of process we’re thinking about because there’s going to be further discovery and more written testimony.  I mean, how much process are you anticipating, or we’ll just set up a hearing date and then we’ll just go through the questions from the Committee?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I think in large measure that’s going to depend on what sort of intervention is sought by parties.  If there obviously there’s no other parties that want to participate, I mean, they can file anything they want in writing prior to the final public hearing and we can consider that.  And I suppose that that’s what we would relay to them either through an order or informally if there is no parties intervening.  But if there are petitions to intervene I would anticipate that they would file objections or not; motions would be either granted or denied by the Committee and we’d schedule further hearings.


MR. GETZ:
I’ve not really sat on a full blown case here.  Is that what you typically do?  It seems like legal notice of requirements have been met.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Typically we -- the thing is when we do an actual application there’s actually a step by step process that I’ve tried to hew to here with this one is that the statute requires public informational hearings which are similar to what we just did in each of the counties first and then the statute requires adversarial hearings or evidentiary hearings with the input of public counsel.  I did speak with the Attorney General’s Office today who chose not to be here today.  But with the input of public counsel as a party and then the other interveners and then for instance in the AES and Newington hearings we actually had three or four days of hearings on each case.  We had several deliberative sessions -- well, actually we had one deliberative session and several work sessions with counsel and then issued orders.  The scheduling in those cases if I remember correctly, a scheduling order was issued by the Chairman after there was a determination of -- on the intervention petitions.  I think we actually -- I think that the intervention petitions were actually granted after telephone vote on those cases.  If I remember correctly.


MR. GETZ:
That was another question I had.  Does public counsel just decide not to show today?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Yeah.  I spoke with Kris Spath.


MR. GETZ:
They would be doing cross-examination and --


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Normally, in a full blown application for siting of a plant they would -- and they always have been very active on any full blown application.  The Attorney General appoints one of the Assistants as the public counsel and they have usually come in with experts and taken -- they haven’t always opposed but they’ve always made sure there was a record.


MS. BAILEY:
Do the Committee members ask questions at the evidentiary hearing?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Yes.


MS. BAILEY:
But you don’t usually do discovery in writing?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
No, they do.  There was data requests and whatnot.  All that was done on the order of the Chair in those cases.  I had informal meetings with the counsel involved in each of those cases and made a recommendation to Commissioner Varney at that time in order for the scheduling.  It was an order of when.  There were data requests in both cases.  There was a minor controversy in each case about sealing certain proprietary documents which the parties managed after a meeting at my office to resolve.  


MS. GEIGER:
What’s like the notice in this case actually did mention that potential interveners would be welcome to provide comment here today so I think people have been put on notice that they have the right to intervene.  We just didn’t put a deadline on it so.  It seems to me that in light of the fact that notice has been given, what about a tight time frame for turnaround for intervention requests so at least we could get those quickly and dispose of them one way or another in advance of -- get them in as quickly as possible or know whether there will be none as quickly as possible and then move on with the rest of it?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
My thinking on it before now was to give until the end of the month and the reason for that was it didn’t seem -- they have to get it published and it doesn’t seem like we’re going to be able to do anything in August anyway and I was thinking that there would be -- I was actually thinking initially that we might even schedule the final hearing and schedule the date for it here, sometime in September.


MS. GEIGER:
Would you have the hearing here or would you have it -- again, there’s no process for this particular type of a scene.  Would you just sort of in keeping with the spirit of the other statute that applies to the original applications, have the hearing down in Londonderry?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
The actual adjudicatory hearings were held here in every case. 


MS. GEIGER:
I know that.  All I’m saying is the spirit of the law or the letter of the law for application says that you have to have at least one public hearing in the county in which the facility is located so all I’m saying is you know, we did have that public hearing for purposes of public comment down in Londonderry.  Could you just sort of fold them both together and say public hearing adjudicatory hearing, this is your time for public comment?  Because we do that all the time.  We schedule adjudicatory hearings and we allow for public comment simultaneously.  Or at the same --


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I don’t think there’s anything that prohibits us from doing that if that’s what the Committee wishes.


MS. GEIGER:
Rather than dragging it out you could actually have your hearing in Londonderry, hear from the public and then adjudicate the application and then you save a step.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
Actually by doing it today we saved that step already.


MS. GEIGER:
What do you mean?


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
The informational hearing.


MS. GEIGER:
But it’s not in the county.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
This isn’t a new application.  This is simply a motion filed in that existing case.


MS. GEIGER:
Right.  I understand that.   All I’m saying is keeping with the spirit -- I know the letter of the law applies to the original application.  All I’m saying is if you want to keep with the spirit of the law that says you’re supposed to have a hearing in the locality or in the county.  You could do that.  I didn’t say you have to do it.  I’m just saying that’s a suggestion.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Legally, I don’t see any reason why you couldn’t.


MS. GEIGER:
Legally I don’t think you even need to have a hearing to be honest with you.  I think this could have been a paper proceeding.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I think so too but that would be a risk -- that would be a legal risk on the part of the Committee.


MS. GEIGER:
I think as a policy matter it’s better to have this.  All I’m saying is that as an additional policy consideration you might want to think about going down to Londonderry.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
As I said, it’s up to the Committee, where you want to have the hearing is up to you.  


MS. MANOOGIAN:
Before we get to that part can we just start talking about time lines and schedules?  And I think like I had heard from you saying that you were anticipating that interveners would -- interested parties who wanted to intervene would have to file by the end of July?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
By the end of July, yes.  For all practical purposes it’s July 1st.  I don’t think 30 days is -- I know they want to have it done yesterday but quite frankly a time frame of between now and September or even October is not all that long a period of time for this and I don’t think it’s going to break the bank for these guys either.


MS. MONOOGIAN:
Have you heard once this notice was publicized, had you heard from any other parties that may potentially be interested in intervening?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
The only people I heard from were Doug Patch, Howard Moffett and Greg Smith.  At least once a week.  


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
And apparently this fellow representing the contractor notified somebody that he was interested.  


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Cronin.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
That’s the only interest so far.


CHAIR:
Questions?


MR. PERRY:
I guess just out of curiosity more than anything.  Why did we have the original provision in there of notification of transfer of ownership for holdings.  What was the purpose of that?


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
The Certificate in this case that we issued said that any transfer of owner interests or words similar to that had to be approved by this Committee.


MR. PERRY:
I understand.  But why did we put that in the original Certificate?


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
Because we got burnt to put it mildly in the Newington case where in the middle of proceedings they transferred the ownership.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Also there’s RSA 162-H-5 does say that such a Certificate shall not be transferred or signed without the approval of the Committee.  Doug says it’s not in the statute.  I think what he means to say is there’s not a process for it in the statute.  The statute does require the approval of the Committee before it can be transferred.  I know it sort of sounded like he said it wasn’t required under the statute but I think it actually is and I think he meant there was no process in the statute.


MR. BRYCE:
To follow up on Lee’s question but before I get to that, when do we get a chance to talk to our counsel about a few things?  I want to make sure that we operate properly.  


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
This is a non-meeting that we are in so that you can consult with counsel on how to proceed with this application.


MR. BRYCE:
Okay.  Well, to follow up on Lee’s question is there must be a specific interest in this case - that we’re looking for - and some I think were brought out.  One is does the company have the capacity to operate the plant.  That’s one concern.  The second though is and the question came up and I think we got the answer, would be are they somehow releasing themselves from liabilities that would somehow, because of this restructuring, that would somehow, we wouldn’t -- that wouldn’t be good.  That the company should still follow through on.  In a sense I get it the answer to that is no, even though it’s just a transfer of equity interest.  I’m wondering where the liability -- how are the liabilities transferred right now or are they in some fashion?  I imagine they’re not extinguished, they’re still sitting out there to try and get the working capital in order to carry those -- in order to meet those.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
The normal ways that liability would be remedied -- the remedy for any liabilities out there for somebody like the contractor, Sustainable Development or whatever their name was, is they have apparently an attachment on the real estate which includes the plant, its equipment and the ground.  The land.  That’s not going to change if in fact they have their attachment against AES Londonderry LLC., at least under the way they are proposing to sell this because AES Londonderry LLC will still exist.  It will just be owned by different entities.


MR. BRYCE:
But can you transfer ownership in such a way that those liabilities would be -- well, you deal with them and they don’t have any assets anymore.  Can that occur or not?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Not where there’s an attachment on that.  Not in that particular example.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
Where he was worried was that if they had an involuntary foreclosure that he’d get wiped out somehow.


MR. BRYCE:
Right.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
That they would be transferring assets.  Now Moffett said they won’t be transferring assets.  


MR. BRYCE:
Yeah.  So on the liability side we seem to be okay.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
We still have the LLC that owns the plant, that still is there, it’s just owned by different people.  If that LLC goes bankrupt that’s a whole new ballgame.


MR. BRYCE:
Right.  So that brings the question of the other -- the -- well, the question I had before and then an additional question.  Is this sort of normal -- for people that understand structure of ownerships, and manufacturing facilities, is this sort of a normal sort of thing that happens?


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
It’s becoming the norm.  It never was.  I mean, normally a company owned it and operated it.  Then the stages we went through is you had owner/operators.  Then we went through a period of time I think where you have owners who were finding operators and having operators run the  plant.  Now we’re having all sorts of entities in between which --


MR. BRYCE:
Well, in terms of restructuring the ownership and operation of the plant, is this sort of a normal way of going about it?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
No.  It’s abnormal because it is basically a voluntary foreclosure.  In essence AES hasn’t kept current with its debt so that the lenders are saying to them, well I don’t know exactly what they’re saying but the position AES is in is they’re either going to foreclose on us involuntarily and whatever rights they have under their loan documents, or we can sort of if this were like a private home, a deed in lieu of foreclosure.  Instead of you foreclosing on me I’m going to give you the deed and we’ll satisfy whatever problems we have between the two of us through this transaction.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
But I think the other side of that coin though is if they do everything they say that they want to do, eventually you would get back to the normal situation.  They’ll find a buyer.  The buyer will be an owner/operator and --


MR. BRYCE:
So there must be some benefit for them not to go through an involuntary foreclosure.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
Oh sure.  Lots of money.


MR. BRYCE:
So it comes back to the question of what is our interest in the transfer and as a Committee -- I don’t know you may have just stated that up front.  I didn’t get it.  Then the second part of that is what do you issue here?  Do you grant a motion or grant approval of a motion?  Is that what happens?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I think really what the interest of the Committee is and he’s right, most states don’t have this process anymore and I did a canvas of states where they’ve had these same processes and I called the Commissions in Arizona and Texas, Massachusetts and I made a list of them somewhere.  


MR. BRYCE:
Most states don’t have governing councils either.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Right.  But in most of those states at one point in time they did have what they called a viability hearing with respect to a transfer of a Certificate or transfer of ownership in a power plant.  But in the deregulated markets now they don’t do that anymore in most places.  In fact, in both Massachusetts and Arizona they simply have a form the applicants fill out and send in to the respective Committees.  It’s called different things in different states but they send a notice out saying that you know the transferee is responsible for all of the conditions contained in the thing.  But they don’t have a hearing and either grant or deny the transfer of the Certificate in those states.


MR. BRYCE:
But there’s something -- I mean, when you said that well, that we were upset when Newington just immediately flopped over into new ownership.  I mean, there was something we didn’t like about that.  By the tone of your voice.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
Yeah.  I personally have deep respect for the building of these plants.  They’re gas plants.  God forbid one blows up on us.  That hasn’t happened, but it could.  I have deep concern that they’re built properly.  So I always worry about that.  


MS. MANOOGIAN:
Well, I think what we’re trying to -- at least for me, my interest is you know, at this point I just want to provide insurance that the conditions that were imposed by the Committee when we approved the original application, that they’re still going to be maintained and honored going forward.  I mean, that’s ultimately what I want and that’s what I want in terms of the insurance.  My question to you Mike, is given that this is the first time we’re seeing AES Londonderry LLC, is that problematic or is it just more like a mosquito --


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
It’s just a mosquito.  I was just asking him about that because that’s the first time I’d seen that entity at all.  We’d spent a lot of time with them I was a little surprised.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
Well, we spot it and we start looking and we start discussing it and --


MS. GEIGER:
But I think that’s not unusual.  It just seems to me that a lot of these transactions that we’ve seen at the PUC recently there’s always this sort of straw entity that takes ownership through the transactional phase and then it ultimately ends up being owned by yet another party so I think that’s what ended up happening here.  


MS. MANOOGIAN:
Right, and I think for us I think our due diligence is just to find out who the ultimate owner is and get some sort of an assurance that ultimately what was originally imposed upon for the acceptance of them or approval of this application will be honored going forward.  That we’re not going to have to get into being -- because we’re not an enforcement entity at all and I don’t want to -- 


MS. GEIGER:
Well, that’s just getting back the whole Con-Ed  comment.  I agree with what happened on that is we did a whole bunch of due diligence on Dominion (ph), or whoever the applicant was, Southern.  The original applicant.  And then on the first day of hearings there’s this whole row of people who we’d never seen before and all of a sudden it’s, “We’re going to own it after you guys certificate it.”  We’re like, “No, excuse me, we need to who you are” and so we made them amend their application.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I don’t think I’ve answered Phil’s questions yet though.  What we have to decide really is whether or not the transferee of the Certificate has sufficient capability, managerial, technical and financial to run the plant under the conditions that we have set on it.  That’s really I think, to answer your question.  What do we ultimately decide.  That I think is the ultimate decision that the Committee makes in determining whether or not to grant the transfer.


MS. BRYCE:
Okay.  If I can follow up.  So it’s to run the plant, run the plant as Vince says, safely.  


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Right.


MR. BRYCE:
So my focus would be on the operating company and whoever ultimately would end up in court under whatever circumstances that would be.  So it leads me to say that if they -- what if they change their minds -- can they change their minds about which company is going to operate it?  I mean, if we feel comfortable with this operating company can they say, “Well, wait a second, we structured the deal differently, we’re going to have Rich McLeod operate the plant.”  


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
One of the options to the Committee is to grant the transfer with the condition that NEAS operate and if they’re going to change operations similar to what we have in the permit as it exists, before there’s any change in operating company you have to come back to us.

(INAUDIBLE DUE TO OVERTALKING)


MR. GETZ:
They’ll be back here in a year if everything works out.


MR. BRYCE:
Right.  Given that time frame, if these guys say there’s been a breach of contract and they boot them out and get somebody in that’s less expensive, cuts corners --


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
If you’re satisfied with NEAS then as a Committee you can require that they continue to be operating.  Obviously AMN AMRO doesn’t hire engineers to run plants.  


MR. PERRY:
If we were to say no on this, what happens?


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
They go bankrupt.


MR. PERRY:
They go belly up and then what happens?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I think the Town of Londonderry is sitting there with --

(inaudible) 


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
They go into the bankruptcy court and make an offer.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
And it gets taken out of our hands and into the Bankruptcy Court.  And once it goes into Bankruptcy Court the State of New Hampshire really has nothing to say about it.


MR. BRYCE:
But if we say yes, we’re still held accountable for that yes decision which is why we put conditions on the motion?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Exactly right.


MS. GEIGER:
I’m really curious about Attorney Cronin’s arguments.  I don’t know what jurisdiction we would have to impose any kind of, you know, have any authority to impose any kind of condition about satisfying his attachment.  I mean, I think he’s really barking up the wrong tree.  So if he moves to intervene -- 


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I would recommend denying that.  That’s the only reason he’s got -- if the intervention has to do with the operation of the plant though because they’re dumping something on his property or something like that, that’s a different issue.  But if it’s just to secure his potential judgment, no.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
He doesn’t have a judgment.  He just has -- he knows that too.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I don’t see a petition there.  That’s why I followed up the 541.


MS. MANOOGIAN:
Okay.  Where are we going?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Want to get back to time frames?


MR. GETZ:
Because I would just take additional time for notice for intervention if it’s going to slow things down but I think you’ve taken the position that’s not going to slow anything down because we’re not going to be able to have a meeting for quite awhile anyway.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I don’t think realistically we can have the next meeting until September.


MS. GEIGER:
Just because everybody is going to be on vacation?  I mean, do we know that?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Trying to get a quorum.


MR. BRYCE:
If we can pull off a quorum how big a deal is this whole thing?  Do we feel comfortable with the operation?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
The day of hearings, probably less than a full day.  


MR. BRYCE:
I mean, how contentious is this really if we don’t get any interveners?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
If we get no interveners what I would suggest to them to do is to file all their testimony on paper and then come in for questions from the Committee and the public.


MS. BAILEY:
So this is their application?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Pretty much.


MR. GETZ:
Can we do something like set out a date for intervention and then direct counsel to meet with the parties to come up with a procedural schedule and then make a recommendation that the Chairman can set a date for a hearing?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Yes.


MS. BAILEY:
Except if we don’t pick a date together.


MR. GETZ:
No, but then he would talk to these people and see how quickly we could do this.  Set up the process and then I think Mike under 541 could meet with them as a Hearings Examiner, we’d designate, and then check with all of the members of the Committee to find a date when we can definitely get a quorum and maybe we can have a date that’s either late August or early September.  But then at least we’d have the information of knowing when we can have that.


MS. BAILEY:
How fast they can get it to us and get their act together.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
So what if we order petitions to intervene to be filed by July 21st.  


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
What date is that?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
That’s three weeks from today roughly.  Well --


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
I think you’re going to want to do a 21 day notice.   It’s the new procedural rules that -- 


MS. BAILEY:
Wasn’t that 14 days?


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
I’m not sure.  The procedural rules.  We have new procedural rules.  


MS. BAILEY:
Oh yeah, we did.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
I remember there was some change in the notice.


MR. PERRY:
If we don’t have an intervener though, is there a need, can we take an action based on the fact that we’ve had sufficient information here and unless some new information becomes available through somebody that wants to be an intervener you could --


MR. GETZ:
I think we need to have --


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
You’re better off to have a hearing where you deliberate and make your order.


MR. GETZ:
Then the public counsel is also given an opportunity to --


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Yeah.  The AG’s office may still decide they want to become involved.  I doubt it though after my conversation with Kris Spath.  


MR. BRYCE:
That’s a signal right there.  I mean, that it’s not a really big deal.  I think my concern is just not delaying it out for the reasons they were given about losing -- you know, you don’t want to be losing some of your best people.  They are going to hang around for awhile but then they’re going to say wait a second.  For us to give them -- if we’re going to go ahead and do it, it’s just a matter of getting more information.  I mean, the quicker the better so that they can move this thing forward.


MS. MANOOGIAN:
I agree with that.  And also I mean I was interested to hear from the Town of Londonderry  since before they were so vehemently opposed to this so to hear them come in now and say -- 

(Inaudible due to overtalking)


MS. MANOOGIAN:
-- but they want to be sure that this gets resolved as soon as possible.


CHAIR:
I’m amenable to having the meeting sooner rather than later to tell you the truth, and I agree with Phil.  I have the same concerns.  I mentioned them to Mike.  I would say that all we need is a quorum to hold the meeting and most of us are going to be around sometime the first part of August.  I’m going to be gone the last week in August and the first week in September but any other time in August -- sooner than later I think would be beneficial.  I think the situation warrants it, to tell you the truth.


MR. GETZ:
Are you really nervous, Mike, about that we really need to give additional notice?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
No, I’m not really all that nervous about it because there’s no process whatsoever for this in the statute.  I’m trying to be fair to everybody.  I mean, I think, you know, I think something that Susan said is if we wanted to we could deliberate right now and make a rule on it.  I don’t think that that’s the best way to proceed because --


MS. GEIGER:
I think that the notice that we gave was we were going to meet today to talk about a procedural schedule.  So I think it would be -- we really didn’t give notice that we would be talking about the merits so I think that probably wouldn’t be a good idea.  But -- it’s theoretically possible we could do it today.  That the procedural schedule consists of pre-file testimony and examination and then we meet in public just to -- I guess there’s no process.


MR. BRYCE:
I like that.  Flexibility.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I know that there’s not going to be a problem with 30 days.  It’s either 21 or 14 days’ notice that’s required.  I know there’s not going to be any problem with 30 days.  My suggestion would be do it for the 30 days.  Allow people 30 days to intervene.  Allow me to meet with anybody who moves to intervene to set up a potential schedule and obviously there will have to be a decision made on intervention at some point by the Committee.  


MS. BAILEY:
But that means we couldn’t have a hearing in early August.  If the goal is to have the hearing in early August then what would you recommend?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
21 days and we’d really be compressing the back end of it.  I mean, that’s the concern that I have.  I know it’s 21 days’ notice on the public hearings and the adjudicatory hearings.


MR. PERRY:
Has this been covered in the press locally?  In addition to the legal notice?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
The Derry News is right here.  I know that there has been a lot of complaints from the Town about the tax bill not being paid and things like that that have been in the local press down there a lot.  But I don’t know that the actual proposed transfer to new owners has been publicized at all, other than the public notice which we required them to give.


MR. GETZ:
What you could do is do something like a schedule where you’re telling them to do the newspaper notice and interventions by the shortest possible date, objections, and then we would know in advance of the hearing and then set a hearing date in August and then we could go into the hearing if there’s interventions and objections and then we could approve or deny and then we’ll be at the hearing.


CHAIR:
Did you say 21 days and then 14 days after that for the hearing?


MR. GETZ:
Well, I think what we’re stuck with though is I think Mike’s going to have to have a meeting with them and then check our schedules to come up with a hearing date because we just don’t have the information.


CHAIR:
So we can shoot for that 14 --


MS. MANOOGIAN:
I would rather if it’s realistic, to say that intervention is due in 21 days but then to let the applicants know that the Committee is receptive to holding a hearing in August and that we would like them to meet with Mike to determine a hearing schedule.  Because I think that Tom is right.  We’re going to have to know what their schedule is as well.  Particularly our interest is for them to file as much of the testimony, put it on paper, so that we can come to the hearing prepared to just ask them questions based on their written testimony.  That will save us a lot of hearing time as well.  But I also think it will show not only to the joint applicants but also to the employees of the plant who I think we’re all kind of concerned about, wanting to give them some sort of message that we don’t want to have this just lingering on and on and on.  That that’s what we’re trying to move this along on a procedural schedule that’s going to satisfy all the parties involved.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Well, if I could suggest some dates here.  If we were to tell them that petitions for intervention had to be filed by July 23rd.  That means if we can get an order out tomorrow they can go get to the paper on -- actually we might have to do it July 26th so that they can get it into the paper.  Any objections to be filed by the applicants to be filed within 10 days and then if there’s any need for informal hearing we’ll have it and we’re going to be looking at late August for -- mid to late August for the hearing.


MS. BAILEY:
When do they file testimony?  Are they going to tell us that after they get the interventions?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I think that would have to be worked out sort of informally and then I would make a recommendation to the Chairman who could just issue a scheduling order.


MR. GETZ:
Can we compact this a little more so if we actually say we’ll give notice that there will be a pre-hearing conference conducted by counsel on July 26th and that’s what the newspaper notice will be to address interventions and the establishment of a hearing date and any other appropriate process such as testimony.  Then you have that hearing that day, if anybody shows up great, if they object, you can handle it and then whoever shows up they can figure out a hearing date and then we can get back maybe even within a week or two after that?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Okay.


MS. GEIGER:
Would you Tom, put it in the notice a deadline for filing a request for intervention in writing or do you just before that day just so Mike would have notice as to who’s out there or not?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I don’t care if they come with their petition.


MS. GEIGER:
Okay.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
That’s fine.  It’s -- petitions to be filed that day at a pre-hearing conference.  


MS. MANOOGIAN:
We’re not at that pre-hearing conference, right?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
No.  Just me.  At which co-applicants and interested parties -- my guess is there’s not going to be anybody there.  Then if it isn’t I’m going to say, “Hey look, get your stuff in in 10 days and we’ll get the hearing scheduled in August.”


MS. MANOOGIAN:
I’ll come.  I’ll come and watch.


MS. BAILEY:
What did you say happens 10 days after that?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Essentially anything that they want to introduce.  Testimony, exhibits or whatever.  Is that okay with everybody?


CHAIR:
So what time frame in August are you -- best case scenario.  


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
At this point that would be a function of the schedule of the Committees but if we’re -- presumably we could probably go -- if there’s no interveners, we could have a final hearing as early as August 2nd if they wanted to forego putting in a testimony or other exhibits.  If there’s interveners it’s not going to be that quick because there will be an exchange of information and we’ll have to issue a further scheduling order through you and you’ll have to make a decision on intervention.


MR. GETZ:
You got a room here that nobody can find that you can have your conference?


CHAIR:
My office upstairs. 


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
But I think if there are no interveners we could have that hearing at whatever date in August is -- we can get a quorum.


MS. BAILEY:
What do you need for a quorum?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Seven.


CHAIR:
I think you’ll find that they’ll accommodate an early schedule.  I think they’re looking for that.


MS. BAILEY:
They will.  It’s just a question as to whether seven of us can meet sometime in August.


MR. GETZ:
Do we have to be physically present?  Can we do it on the phone?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I would advise physical presence.


MR. GETZ:
You may want to send around an e-mail to all the Committee sometime soon and say reserve some dates because I know we have PSNH rate hearings the first week of August but that second week is  --


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I mean, the week of the 9th, the 16th or the 23rd of August would all be available I would think.  It’s just a matter of getting people there.  Alright. 


CHAIR:
Are we done?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
When we go back on the record we want to have some brief discussion about this direction to me to prepare the order for you, Mike?


CHAIR:
Yes.  I’ve got to leave at 3:30 but I’ve asked Tom to jump in.

(CHAIR LEAVES - GETZ TAKES OVER AS CHAIR)


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Alright.  Is there anything else that anybody wanted to discuss with counsel before we have them come back in?


MS. MANOOGIAN:
I have one or two questions and I don’t know if they’re stupid questions or not but on page 9 of their petition they say the lenders themselves will not own or operate the project and there will be no recourse against the lenders.  That language gives me pause.  The other question that I’m wondering about and I don’t think there’s a connection but what does AES stand for?


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
American Energy Services.


MS. MANOOGIAN:
American Energy Services and who is the new operator going to be?  North American Energy Services.  Is there any connection there in any way, shape or form?  I mean, it looks like from Tab D or whatever that NEAS is some affiliate of some Japanese corporation but --


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I doubt it but it certainly is an issue they can address as part of the hearing.  I mean, if Tom wants to let you do it you can ask them then when we come back in.  But I really don’t think there’s any connection.


MS. GEIGER:
Does anybody on the Committee think you’re going to need discovery like Environmental Services or anybody need in terms of the compliance issues.  Do you guys need to -- I mean, that could have been a data request or something.  Are you going to have a procedural schedule that allows -- or are you just going to ask questions at the hearing?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Well, I think the way we were anticipating that in large part depends upon what type of participation there is.  If there are no interventions it will be -- I mean, I can certainly --


MS. MANOOGIAN:
Well actually, I would like it if you could on our behalf is for those items that he’s reflected that they’ve got updated reports or updated in their environmental permitting, if they could provide that -- I think you’ve already requested that -- and that any other -- I think there’s some additional data that they said won’t be available until mid to late July.  The results of that data that I think was finalized I think in June.  So to the extent that there’s any updated information in regard to some of their outstanding environmental -- I think they said environmental concerns or one could say environmental violations, that would be really helpful to just have them provide that.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
They’re all air, right Craig?


MR. WRIGHT:
They’re all air as far as I know.  They did mention in their submittal that there might have been some water or wetness things but they didn’t really describe what they were.  We’ve been working with them on the three air issues though.


ATTORNEY V. IACOPINO:
What about the plume thing.  Is that all resolved?


MR. WRIGHT:
Hopefully.  Some day.  They’ve had a lot of problems with their plume abatement system.  That was a big issue in the hearings.  So far, as near as I can tell I don’t think it’s delivered quite to the level that was advertised  during those hearings.  Mike, I do actually have a copy of the order that was issued by the Department but I can -- I have like 20 copies I can get to the Committee now if you want.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Actually, can you make sure that a copy is with Helen.  I know she works here and everything but that a copy is in the file here and then if anybody is interested can get one from you.  That would be great.  Phil, did you have a question?


MR. BRYCE:
Is it appropriate to ask for like safety records on the part of the operating company?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I don’t see why not.  I can do that as part of the informal meetings with them.  Tell them look, we’re going to want to see NEAS’s whatever documents are available for safety purposes and we’d like those filed before the hearing.  I can tell them that.  Of course, we’re not going to have the benefit of a neighborhood coalition here with every citation that they’ve ever got for dropping a piece of coal.


MR. BRYCE:
I’m looking for where there’s injury.  Actually like OSHA reportable safety incidents.  Or that there’s been a lost time.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Yeah.  I can make a request for that.


MR. BRYCE:
Or major losses in plant assets.  Which they were fortunate not to have loss of life.


MR. GETZ:
Does this need to be in a motion or just a brief saying what the determinations of the Committee is in consultation with counsel?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Why don’t you introduce it and then ask for somebody to make a motion to adopt that procedural schedule which will be that intervention petitions are to be filed by July 26th and a pre-trial conference to be held between all potential interveners and applicant and co-counsel on July 26th at a place to be designated in the notice.


MR. GETZ:
So I think I’ll say that we have determined in consultation with counsel we require additional public notice to appear in conference to be conducted by counsel on July 26th at which time any notice to intervene will be addressed.  A date for the hearing will be established and any other procedural requirements will be determined and that the details of the notice will be worked out with Committee counsel and I get a motion?


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Yes.  Okay.  Do you want to bring them in?

(Off the record)

RETURN TO PUBLIC MEETING:

MR. GETZ:
You’ll note for the record that we’re back on the record in public session and before we deal with the procedural issues that we adjourned to address, are there any items of new business that need to be brought up?  


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
Mr. Chairman, I would suggest we deal with the procedural issues first and then address new business.  That way we can get this part of the agenda done and people don’t need to be here for new business.


MR. GETZ:
I thought your counsel was just the opposite.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I’m sorry.  I obviously was not very clear.


MS. MANOOGIAN:
I understood what he meant.


MR. GETZ:
Okay.  Then I’ll note that in consultation with counsel we discussed the procedural requirements for conducting this proceeding and we’ve concluded that it will require additional public notice of a pre-hearing conference that would be conducted by counsel on July 26th, at which time any motion to intervene would be addressed and a date for hearing will be established and any other procedural requirements would also be determined at that time.  I’ll also note that notice of this hearing, the details should be worked out with Committee counsel.  So I would entertain a motion to adopt that procedure.


MR. PERRY:
So moved.


MR. GETZ:
A second?


MS. BAILEY:
Second.


MR. GETZ:
All in favor?  Opposed?  Hearing none then the motion is adopted.  Mr. Moffett?


ATTORNEY MOFFETT:
Mr. Chairman, if I may?  Is it implicit in that that there would be a further order of notice published in a newspaper and if so would there be a deadline for that?


MR. GETZ:
Yes.  That is implicit in that.  When I said that the details of the notice would be worked out with counsel then that’s the notice that I was referring to is that written notice.


ATTORNEY M. IACOPINO:
I think if we’re going to have any petitions for intervention filed by that date and anybody that wants to participate is going to have to be at that pre-hearing conference.  We’re trying to compress it as much as we can and still give adequate notice.


MR. GETZ:
Okay.  Moving on to new business.  Do we have any items?


MS. MANOOGIAN:
Actually I have two items, Mr. Vice Chairman.  One is I just wanted to be able to acknowledge and publically thank Commissioner Geiger for your years of service and your support and expertise on this Committee and numerous other Committees in which you’ve served the State.  You’re going to be well missed by many of us and we wish you all the success and again thank you for your years of service.


MS. GEIGER:
Thank you.


MS. MANOOGIAN:
My other item of new business is actually a question for counsel.  It’s a legal question for counsel so I don’t know if we ought to be continuing this is a public meeting or if we I can ask the question in private.  Can we adjourn this meeting?


MR. GETZ:
Can I get a motion to adjourn this meeting and then move into a consultation with counsel to address a legal item under new business.


MR. BRYCE:
So moved.


MR. GETZ:
Second?


MS. GEIGER:
Second.


MR. GETZ:
All in favor?  Moved.  The meeting is adjourned for consideration of the joint application of AES Londonderry and we will move into a non-meeting to discuss a new business legal item.
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